
84th Annual Report 
2018-19



CONTENTS

Company Information ........................................................................................ 1

Notice ................................................................................................................. 2

Directors’ Report ................................................................................................ 10

Management Discussion and Analysis Report ................................................... 21

Corporate Governance Report ........................................................................... 23

Independent Auditors‘ Report ........................................................................... 36

Balance Sheet ...................................................................................................... 44

Statement of Profit & Loss ................................................................................. 45

Cash Flow Statement ........................................................................................... 46

Significant Accounting Policies ........................................................................ 48

Notes to Financial Statements .......................................................................... 60

Statement of figures from Season 2000-01 to 2018-19 .................................... 85

Financial Statistics from 2008-09 to 2018-19 ..................................................... 86

Proxy Form ........................................................................................................... 87

Attendance Slip .................................................................................................... 89



(Incorporated under the Indian Companies Act VII of 1913)
CIN: L24116MH1933PLC001996

BOARD OF DIRECTORS H R KILACHAND Chairman & Managing Director

A S RUIA Independent Director [w.e.f. 30.04.2018] 

P N DUBEY Independent Director [upto 30.04.2018]

M A KUVADIA Independent Director  

MS. BHUMIKA BATRA Independent Director 
[From 14.08.2018 to 22.07.2019]

D J SHAH Director & Company Secretary 
[Whole-Time Director upto 30.04.2018]

SR. VICE PRESIDENT [LEGAL] & D J SHAH

COMPANY SECRETARY

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) ROHIT BALU

BANKERS Allahabad Bank

Uttar Pradesh Co-operative Bank Limited

UCO Bank

AUDITORS M/s. Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants

SUGAR FACTORY, SPIRITS AND

POWER PLANT Baheri, Dist. Bareilly, U.P.

REGISTERED OFFICE Oriental House

7, Jamshedji Tata Road

Churchgate

Mumbai - 400 020

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENTS SHAREX DYNAMIC (INDIA) PVT. LTD.

C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg,

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083.
  
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS A S RUIA Chairman of the Committee 

Independent Director [w.e.f.30.04.2018] 

P N DUBEY Chairman of the Committee 
Independent Director [upto 30.04.2018]

M A KUVADIA Member of the Committee 
Independent Director

H R KILACHAND Member of the Committee 
Chairman & Managing Director



2

Annual Report 2018-2019

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 84th Annual General Meeting of the Members of KESAR ENTERPRISES LTD. will be 
held on Friday, 20th September, 2019 at 3:30 pm at M C Ghia Hall, Bhogilal Hargovindas Building, 4th Floor, 18/20, 
Kaikhushru Dubash Marg, Mumbai 400001 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

for the period ended on that date together with the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri H R Kilachand [DIN 00294835], who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Ordinary 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 148 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 

and approved by the Board of Directors, the appointment and payment of remuneration of Rs.75,000/- (Rupees 
Seventy Five Thousand Only) plus GST as applicable and reimbursement of actual travel and out of pocket 
expenses to Rishi Mohan Bansal, Cost Accountant, Kanpur (Registration No.000022) as Cost Auditor, to conduct 
the audit of the Cost Records of the Company relating to Sugar & Industrial Alcohol and Electricity for the year 

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri D J Shah, Sr. Vice President (Legal) & Company Secretary be and is hereby 
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 

Special 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

approvals as may be necessary, approval be and is hereby granted for the reappointment of Shri H R Kilachand 

substantial powers of the Management, for a period of 3 years from 14.8.2019 to 13.8.2022, on a remuneration as 

 I. SALARY:

computed in the manner as laid down under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013;

OR

   Salary Rs.5,00,000/- per month or Rs.60,00,000/- per annum [or any higher limit as may be revised from 

(B) of Schedule V.
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 II. PERQUISITES:

  Shri H R Kilachand shall be entitled to House Rent Allowance not exceeding 60% of the salary, gas, electricity, 
medical reimbursement, leave travel concession for self and family, club fees, personal accident insurance, 

ceiling limits payable to Shri H R Kilachand, subject however to the limit of overall Minimum Remuneration 
as prescribed under Schedule V.

not taxable under the Income Tax Act;

  iii. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure.

Shri H R Kilachand shall be entitled to reimbursement of expenses actually and properly incurred by him for the 
business of the Company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aforesaid remuneration would nevertheless be paid and allowed to Shri H R Kilachand 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri H R Kilachand would be regarded as a Director liable to retire by rotation, till such 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the payment of above remuneration shall also be subject to Section V of Schedule 
V of the Act, which provides that subject to the provisions of Sections I, II & IV of Part II of Schedule V, Shri H R 
Kilachand shall draw remuneration from the Company and/or from M/s. Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure Ltd. (KTIL) in 
which Shri Kilachand is appointed as Executive Chairman, provided that the total remuneration drawn and retained by 
Shri Kilachand from both the Companies shall not exceed the higher maximum limit admissible from any one of the 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the amount of remuneration to be paid by each Company will be decided by the Board 
of both the Companies from time to time considering the higher maximum limit admissible from any one of the 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any settlement, as and when arrived at with the Lenders, the Board 
of Directors be and is hereby authorised to decide the payment of remuneration to Shri H R Kilachand within the 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper 

 By Order of the Board of Directors
Oriental House,  
7, Jamshedji Tata Road,
Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020 D J SHAH
  Sr. Vice President (Legal) & 
 Company Secretary
14th August, 2019 



4

Annual Report 2018-2019

Notes:

a) A member, entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on a poll instead of himself / herself and the proxy need not be a Member. The instrument appointing 

commencement of the meeting.

 A person can act as a proxy for not exceeding 50 Members and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of 
the total Share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than 10% of the total 
Share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall 
not act as a proxy for any other Member.

b) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Friday, 
13th September, 2019 to Friday, 20th September, 2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General 

c) The Unclaimed Dividend upto the Financial Year 2010-11 have been transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (Fund) set up by the Central Government pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Company has not declared any dividend after the Financial Year 2010-11.

 
Mumbai - 400 083 or with the Company.

e) An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special Business to 
be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

f) All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement are open for inspection 

between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. up to the date of the ensuing Meeting.

g) Members are informed that in case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in 
order of the names will be entitled to vote.

at the Meeting.

their behalf at the Meeting.

mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories, unless any 

all communication from the Company electronically. Hence, kindly provide your email address for serving by 

Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd., the Registrar and Transfer Agents through email id support@sharexindia.com or the 
djs@kesarindia.com.

k) E-Voting:

 In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide its Shareholders with facility to exercise their 
right to vote at the 84th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted 
through e-Voting Services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The Company has 
signed an agreement with CDSL for facilitating e-Voting to enable the Shareholders to cast their vote electronically.

Process for E-Voting

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on Monday, 16th September, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. and ends on Thursday, 19th September, 
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dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Friday, 13th September,2019 may cast their vote electronically. The 
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

(iii) Click on Shareholders.

(iv) Now Enter your User ID

 b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

 c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 
demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 

Dividend Bank 
Details OR 
Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records in order to login.

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member 

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password 

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the Kesar Enterprises Ltd. on which you choose to vote.

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION”
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and 
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 

accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store, Apple and Windows phone. Please follow the 
instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.
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(xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

 helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval 
of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(“FAQs”) 
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com.

(xxi) Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it 

(xxii) Ragini Chokshi & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the 
e-Voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall within a period of not exceeding 3 (three) 
working days from the conclusion of the e-Voting period unblock the votes in the presence of at least 2 (two) 

against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman / Secretary of the Company.

www.kesarindia.com and on the website of CDSL within 3 (three) working days of the 
passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company and communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Items No.3 – Appointment & Payment of Remuneration to Rishi Mohan Bansal as Cost Auditor:

Pursuant to Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
the appointment of and remuneration payable to Rishi Mohan Bansal, Cost Auditor, as recommended by the Audit 

The Board, on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and payment of 
remuneration of Rs.75,000/- (Rs.50,000/- for previous year) to Rishi Mohan Bansal, Cost Accountant, Kanpur (Regn. 
No.000022), as Cost Auditor for conducting the cost audit of cost records of the Company relating to Sugar & Industrial 
Alcohol and Electricity for the year ending 31st March, 2020.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in any way, concerned or 

The Board recommends the Resolution as set out at Item No.3 of the Notice for your approval.

Items No.4 – Reappointment of Shri H R Kilachand as Whole-Time Director:

The last reappointment of Shri H R Kilachand, Chairman & Managing Director was made at the 81st Annual General 
Meeting held on 11.08.2016 for a period of 3 years with effect from 14.8.2016 to 13.8.2019, on a remuneration in 
accordance with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 as amended. However, Shri H R Kilachand has not been 
drawing any remuneration voluntarily from the Company since March 2014 in view of the heavy losses suffered by the 
Company for the last few years.

The existing term of appointment of Shri H R Kilachand as Chairman & Managing Director was up to 13.8.2019, which 

Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors.

Hence, at the meetings held on 17.05.2019, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors 
have approved reappointment of Shri H R Kilachand as the Whole-Time Director designated as Chairman & Managing 
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Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 14.8.2019 to 13.8.2022 and have also approved his 

the ceiling limit calculated on the basis of Effective Capital of Company. The present Effective Capital of Company 
is negative, therefore, the maximum limit of remuneration can be paid is Rs.5.00 lakh per month or Rs.60 lakh per 
annum. However, the Company has made default in repayment of its debts to the Banks for a continuous period of (30) 

remuneration to Shri Kilachand. However, in the event of any settlement, as and when arrived at with the Lenders, the 
Board of Directors will decide the payment of remuneration to Shri H R Kilachand within the prescribed ceiling limit 
of Schedule V of the Act.

While considering the reappointment, the Board has taken into account relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 

remuneration, etc. and brought about objectivity in determining his remuneration package while striking a balance 
between the interest of the Company and the Shareholders.

DIN 00294835
Birth Date 4.5.1960
Nationality Indian
Reappointment by Board 17.05.2019

B.Com. from University of Bombay and C.B.M. & P.D.B.M., U.S.A.
Experience

entrusted with the duties of Administration & Co-ordination work of KEL and 

the expansion & modernisation of Sugar Factory, Distillery, ENA & IMFL Plants, 
the Power Plant for Cogeneration and also a Second Storage Terminal at Kandla.

as a Chairman & Managing Director of KEL.

Since the demerger of Storage Division of KEL into Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure 
Ltd. [KTIL] i.e. from 14.09.2010, he worked as the Executive Chairman of KTIL 
till 29.04.2016. During that period, he contributed a lot in the growth of the 
Company. He could manage to get for KTIL a Composite Logistic Hub Project 
at Madhya Pradesh through its Special Purpose Vehicle Company viz. Kesar 
Multimodal Logistics Ltd. (KMLL). He had to resign on 29.04.2016 due to his 
engagement in other business activities. However, he has once again joined KTIL 
as an Executive Chairman w.e.f. 20.12.2017.

Relationship Key Managerial Personnel
Shareholding
Relationship with other Director –
List of other Directorship Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure Ltd.

Kesar Multimodal Logistics Ltd.
Kesar Corporation Pvt. Ltd.
Indian Commercial Co. Pvt. Ltd.
Seel Investment Private Ltd. (w.e.f. 21.02.2019)
Kilachand Devchand & Company Private Ltd.
Kilachand Devchand Commercial Private Ltd.
India Carat Pvt. Ltd. (upto 15.02.2019)
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Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure Ltd. [KTIL], entrusted with substantial powers of the Management, for a period of 3 
years from 20.12.2017 to 19.12.2020 on remuneration as per Schedule V to the Companies Act.

Hence, as per Section 197, the Company proposes to appoint Shri H R Kilachand as the Chairman & Managing 
Director, since he is also the Executive Chairman of M/s. Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure Ltd. [KTIL] and also as per 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 1956, the total remuneration drawn and retained by Shri H R Kilachand from both 
the Companies shall not exceed the higher maximum limit admissible from any one of the Companies i.e. the Company 
or KTIL.

given below:

I General Information

1 Nature of industry Sugar Industry

2 Date or expected date of commencement of 
commercial production

16th October,1933

3 In case of new companies, expected date of 
commencement of activities as per project 

prospectus.

N.A.

4 Financial performance based on given indicators 

31.03.2019 is as under:

Turnover & Other Income 40,503.36 Lakh

4,022.38 Lakh

Companies Act, 2013
–

Net worth (Excluding Revaluation Reserves) (20,495.19) Lakh

5 Foreign investments or collaborations, if any. –

II Information about the appointee:

1 Background details He had joined Kesar Enterprises Ltd. (KEL) on 

the duties of Administration & Co-ordination work 
of KEL and also to plan & supervise projects for 

duties entrusted to him, including completion of 
the expansion & modernisation of Sugar Factory, 
Distillery, ENA & IMFL Plants, the Power Plant for 
Cogeneration and also a Second Storage Terminal 
at Kandla.

On 6.3.1997, he was appointed as a “Joint Managing 

his father, w.e.f. 14.8.1997 he has been working as 
a Chairman & Managing Director of KEL.
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2 Past remuneration He has not been drawing any remuneration 
voluntarily from the Company since March 2014 in 
view of the heavy losses suffered by the Company 
for the last few years.

3 Recognition or awards –

4 He is a Key Managerial Personnel as the Managing 
Director. Taking into consideration his vast 
experience Shri H R Kilachand is best suited for the 
assigned role.

5 Remuneration proposed Rs.5.00 lakh per month or Rs.60 lakh per annum 
as per Schedule V read with Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

6

and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details 
would be with respect to the country of his origin)

The proposed remuneration commensurate with 
size and nature of business of the Company and the 
responsibilities   of the appointee. The remuneration 
do differ from Company to Company in the industry 
depending on the respective operations.

7 Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with 
the company, or relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any.

He is the Promoter Director.

III Other information:

1 High payment of sugarcane price raised by the State 
Government and low realisation on sale of sugar 
resulted in loss.

2 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement. The Company has been taking appropriate steps 
what is in its control to reduce cost, improve the 

an amicable settlement with the Banks with a view 

3
measurable terms.

–

IV Disclosures: The information and disclosures of the remuneration 
package of the managerial personnel have been 
mentioned in the Annual report in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

Save and except Shri H R Kilachand and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company, 
none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out at Item No.4 of the Notice for your approval.

 By Order of the Board of Directors
Oriental House,
7, Jamshedji Tata Road,
Churchgate,
Mumbai – 400 020 D J SHAH
  Sr. Vice President (Legal) &
  Company Secretary
 14th August, 2019
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

 
31st March, 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

  (Rs. In Lakh)

2018-19 2017-18

2,369.26 1,464.13

Less: Interest and Finance Charges 4,478.19 4,316.66

(2,108.93) (2,852.53)

Less: Depreciation 1,913.45 1,819.14

Less: Taxation (Deferred Tax) –  –

(4,022.38) (4,671.67)

Other Comprehensive Income

(41.38) (19.91)

(ii) Effect of measuring investment at fair value (673.40) (668.13)

(4,737.16) (5,359.71)

For the Financial Year 2018-19, there is a loss of Rs.4,737.16 lakh as against the loss of Rs.5,359.71 lakh in the previous 
year.

During the year under review, the Company has incurred huge cash loss due to mismatch between high Sugarcane 

the entire net worth of the Company is eroded and its current liabilities are in excess of current assets.

WORKING OF THE DIVISIONS

Sugar Division

The crushing for the Season 2018-19 started on 02.11.2018 i.e. 1 day earlier as compared to 03.11.2017 in the 
previous season and ended on 4.05.2019 as against 30.04.2018 i.e. 4 days later than the previous season.

cane area allotted to us by the State Government, better cane yield and more supply of sugarcane by the farmers on 
account of the trust they had developed with us due to timely cane price payment during the previous year. The overall 
sugar recovery has been the highest at 10.91% as against 10.63% in the previous season. This was due to our cane 
development programme of changing the varieties into early maturing high sugar canes. This Sugar Season, the Sugar 

previous season.

For the Season 2018-19, the Central Government had announced a Fair & Remunerative Price [FRP] of sugarcane 

During the last few years, the cost of production in UP was the highest in the country, which rendered the UP Sugar 
Industry unviable, cash-starved and uncompetitive. There is an urgent need to rationalize the cane pricing policy in 
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realisation. The U P Government had announced the formation of a high level Committee to determine a fair Sugarcane 
Pricing Policy. This is the only long term solution for stability & viability of the Sugar industry. The report of the High 
Level Committee is yet to be announced.

season.

The UP Government had announced the Molasses Policy for 2018-19 (November-October), wherein the molasses 

During the year under review, there has been decrease in sugar prices from the levels prevailing in the previous year. 

the short term.

Power Division

During the Sugar Season 2018-19, the Plant started on 29.10.2018 as against 31.10.2017 in the previous season and 
operated till 01.07.2019 due to higher crushing of sugarcane and purchase of additional alternate fuel.

The Plant consumed 3.01 lakh MT of bagasse and 0.65 lakh MT of alternate fuel to generate 1.77 lakh MW power as 
against 2.86 lakh MT of bagasse and 0.55 lakh MT of alternate fuel to generate 1.65 lakh MW power in the previous 
Season. The total power exported to the grid of Uttar Pradesh Power Corporation Limited (UPPCL) upto 02.07.2019 
was 1.28 lakh MW amounting to Rs.75.14 crore as against 1.20 lakh MW amounting to Rs.66.83 crore in the total 
previous Season.

Spirits Division

which would enable the Distillery to become zero discharge compliant. As the Company did not have such capability, 
the Company had voluntarily taken a shut down of its Distillery operations since October 2015.

With a view to revive the operations due to a pollution policy by the Central Government, the Company has installed 
the necessary Multiple Effect Evaporation system and Condensate Polishing Unit [CPU] as basic pollution control 

course, to maintain continuity of the Distillery Plant Operations in the monsoon period.

The Distillery started production from 1st week of June 2019 and continued till 30.06.2019 as the Distillery cannot be 
operated during monsoon by adopting to bio-composting method. During this period, we have produced around 10.81 

SUBSEQUENT FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

Sugar Division

During the Financial Year 2019-20, the sugar price is expected to be steady due to government intervention. This may 
result into the Company generating better operational margin gradually. The industry outlook is also positive in the 
short term and long term with sugar prices expected to be stable.

in recovery, as per previous year with increase in every 10% in recovery.

Spirits Division

subject to obtaining necessary approvals from the State Government.

Power Division

The Cogen Power Plant will restart in end of October 2019.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The Paid up Share Capital as on 31.3.2019 was Rs.10.08 crore. During the year under review, the Company has not 
issued any shares.

BOARD AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the year 6 Board Meetings and 4 Audit Committee Meetings were heId, the details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

1. Shri Prakash Dubey had resigned as Director of the Company with effect from 30.04.2018 due to personal reasons. 
The Board of Directors had placed on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable support and guidance given 
by Shri Prakash Dubey to the Company during his tenure as Director of the Company.

2. On 30.04.2018, Shri A S Ruia was appointed as Additional Director in the category of Independent Director of 
the Company by the Board of Directors of the Company as recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee. Thereafter, he was appointed as Independent Director for a second term of 5 years by the Shareholders 
of the Company through Special Resolution at the 83rd AGM.

3. Shri D J Shah had resigned as a Whole-Time Director w.e.f. 30.04.2018 and he is continuing as the Company 

Managerial Personnel as per section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, as there is no other Non-Independent Director who will retire 
by rotation at the ensuing AGM, Shri H R Kilachand, Chairman & Managing Director has been proposed to retire by 
rotation at the 84th AGM and he being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. As per the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 

All the Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence as laid down 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. 

any circumstances or situation, which exits or may be reasonablly anticipated that, could impair or impact their ability 
to discharge their duties.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, the Company has formulated a 
programme for familiarising the Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the 
Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company etc through various 

www.kesarindia.com/
investors/corporate governance/policies.

BOARD EVALUATION / APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board carried out an Annual Performance Evaluation of 
its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit Committee and 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

During the year under review, the Company has revised the Nomination & Remuneration policy as per Section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The 
Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report. The details of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Policy are available on the website of the Company www.kesarindia.com/investors/corporate governance/policies.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shri H R Kilachand, Chairman & Managing Director, Shri D J Shah, Sr. Vice President (Legal) & Company Secretary 

the Companies Act, 2013.
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MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN END OF THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR & DATE OF THIS REPORT:

Ms. Bhumika Batra (DIN: 03502004), Non- Executive Independent Director of the Company has, vide her letter dated 
22.07.2019, tendered her resignation as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 22.07.2019, due to 
personal reasons and certain other pre-occupations. There are no other material changes & commitments affecting the 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

knowledge hereby state that:

standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

concern basis.

vi) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There are no contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and hence Form AOC-2 is not annexed. The Members may refer Note 40 to the Notes to Accounts for further details of 
routine transactions entered into with the Related Parties.

All Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee/Board, as applicable for their approval. 

transactions were place before the Audit Committee for review specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions 
of the transactions. 

A policy of Related Party Transactions as approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors is uploaded on 
the website of the Company www.kesarindia.com/investors/corporate governance/policies.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Company is making efforts to settle with the Banks.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Management Discussion & Analysis Report is annexed and forms part of this Annual Report. The Company 
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CERTIFICATE FROM CMD AND CFO

Governance Report.

INSIDER TRADING

In compliance with the SEBI regulation on prevention of Insider Trading, your Company has framed a comprehensive 
code which lays down guidelines and advises the Directors and employees of the Company on procedures to be 
followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing in securities of the Company. During the year under review, the 
Company adopted Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 
and the Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading in accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) for prevention and redressal of complaints / 
grievances on the sexual harassment of women at work places. During the year under review no incident had taken 
place.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

Particulars with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Annexure ”A” forming part of this Report. 
During the year under review, there were no foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

INSURANCE

DEPOSITS

As per the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not eligible to raise Deposits in terms of Section 73 of the Act, the 
Company has not accepted / renewed any Deposits.

AUDITORS

85th AGM.

No frauds have been reported by the Auditors during the Financial Year 2018-19.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM & INTERNAL AUDITORS

to the Management. The Company has Independent Auditors M/s. Ashok Jayesh & Co., Chartered Accountants to 
review critical areas of operations. The Audit Reports are reviewed periodically by the Management and the Audit 
Committee of the Board and appropriate measures are taken to improve the process.

COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to Sections 148 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board had appointed Rishi Mohan Bansal, Cost Accountant as Cost Auditor 

ended 31.3.2019. The Cost Audit Report for the same will be submitted to the Central Government before 30.09.2019. 
Similarly, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, the 
appointment and payment of remuneration to Rishi Mohan Bansal, Cost Accountant, Kanpur, as Cost Auditor has been 
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Company relating to Sugar & Industrial Alcohol and Generation of Power for the year ending 31st March, 2020.

ANNUAL RETURN

accessed at http://www.kesarindia.com/investors/communications.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board had appointed M/s. Ragini Chokshi & Co., Practicing Company 
Secretary, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company to undertake the Secretarial Audit and provide Secretarial Audit Report 
in Form MR3. The Report of the Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure- “B”. The said report contain 
the following remarks:

The reply to the above remarks are as under:

(i) The Company is making efforts to settle with the Banks.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

year as per the applicable provisions of the Act.

EMPLOYEES

Relation with the employees remained cordial throughout the year. Your Directors place on record their sincere 

197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, in respect of employees on the payroll of the Company in India, is provided as 
Annexure-“C” which forms part of this report.

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be provided upon 

Annual General Meeting. Any member interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the Company Secretary at 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to place on record their grateful appreciation for the assistance and cooperation extended 
by the Banks, Financial Institutions and the wholehearted support extended by the Shareholders during the year under 
review.

 By Order of the Board of Directors
 H R KILACHAND
14th August, 2019 Chairman & Managing Director
 DIN: 00294835
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Annexure “A” 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 Forming part of the Directors’ Report

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy
1. We have replaced steam driven drives with electric drives with the latest technology with VFDs along with automation through 

Distributed Control System (DCS). The electric drives consume much less energy to drive the mills and thereby results in 

A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION 2018-19 2017-18
1. ELECTRICITY

a Purchased
Unit Kwh 3,13,717 3,61,204
Total Amount Rs. 37,93,115 46,29,523
Rate/Unit Rs. 12.09 12.82

b Own Generation
i) Through Diesel Generator

Unit Kwh 37,454 36,520
Units Per Ltr. Of Diesel Oil Kwh 3.09 2.74
Rate / Unit Rs. 22.37 22.25

ii) Through Steam Turbine
Unit Kwh 16,93,57,825 13,00,89,227
Units Per M. T. of Steam Kwh 191.16 186.64
Rate / Unit Rs. 988 822

2. Coal
- -

Cost - -
Average Rate - -

3. Bagasse (Own)
M.T. 295784 2,27,918

Cost * Rs.
Average Rate * Rs. (M.T.)

4. Other Fuel (Outside)
M.T. 68162 49,521

Cost Rs. 4,58,82,223 3,42,00,569
Average Rate# Rs. 673 690

5. Rice Husk
M.T.

Cost Rs.
Average Rate Rs.

6. Cane Trash
M.T.

Cost- Rs.
Average Rate Rs.

7. H. S. DIESEL
Ltr. 12123 13,334

Cost Rs. 837810 8,12,716
Average Rate Rs. 69.11 60.95

* Not applicable as the bagasse is a by-product and is used as fuel.

Consumption per unit of production
Product (Sugar)
Electricity Kwh / M.T. 274.74 237.17
Bagasse / Risk Husk / Cane Trash M.T. / M.T. - -
Diesel Oil Ltr. / M.T. - -
Product (Industrial Alcohol)
Electricity - -
Coal - -
Bagasse (Pith) - -
Rice Husk - -
Diesel Oil - -

FORM B
FORM OF DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO ABSORPTION OF TECHNOLOGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
A. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
 The Company has not spent any amount on Research & Development.

B. BENEFITS DERIEVED
Expenditure on R & D 2018-19 2017-18
a) Capital - -
b) Recurring - -
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE PERIOD 01-04-2018 TO 31-03-2019

To, 
The Members, 
KESAR ENTERPRISES LIMITED,
Oriental House, 7, 
Jamshedji Tata Road,
Churhgate, 
Mumbai- 400020.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by KESAR ENTERPRISES LIMITED (CIN: L24116MH1933PLC001996) (hereinafter called 

corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the Financial Year 1st April, 2018 to 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

Company for the Financial Year 1st April, 2018 to 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulation made there under to the extent of External 
Commercial Borrowings, Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment - (No event during reporting 
period).

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

2011.

  b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

- (No event during reporting period). 

 (No event 
during reporting period).

 e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008- 
(No event during reporting period).

 f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the companies act and dealing with client. - (Not Applicable during reporting period).
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No event during 
reporting period).

 h. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 2009 - (No event during 
reporting period). 

Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company.

2. The Essential Commodities Act, 1955 

3. The Sugar Cess Act 1982 

4. The Electricity Act, 2003 

5. The Electricity Supply Act, 1948 

6. The Indian Power Alcohol Act, 1948 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(a) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

and the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange.

 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except :

We further report that during the reporting period;

Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

carried out and is in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

 The compliances by the Company of applicable Financial Laws like Direct & Indirect Tax Laws, Service Tax 
has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory Auditors of the 
Company. 

 We further report that during the reporting period, following changes took place in the Management of the 
Company.

1. Mr. Prakash Dubey (DIN: 02132564) had resigned as an Independent Director with effect from 30th April, 2018.

2. Appointment of Mr. Anilkumar Sushilkumar Ruia (DIN: 00296622) as Additional Independent Director of the 
Company was made by the Board with effect from 30th April, 2018 and the same has been regularized as an 
Independent Director of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 14th August, 2018.
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3. Appointment of Ms. Bhumika Batra (DIN: 03502004) as an Additional Independent Director of the Company was 
made by the Board with effect from 14th August, 2018.

4. Mr. Devendra Jitendra Shah has resigned as Whole Time Director with effect from 30th April, 2018 and has 
continued as Sr. Vice President [Legal] & Company Secretary.

For Ragini Chokshi & Co.

Makarand Patwardhan
(Partner)

C.P. No: - 9031 
FCS No: -11872

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14-08-2019

Annexure –A

To,
The Members,
KESAR ENTERPRISES LIMITED,
Oriental House, 7, Jamshedji Tata Road, 
Churhgate, Mumbai- 400020.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. The maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Company. 

regulations and happening of events etc.

c. The compliance of the provision of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ragini Chokshi & Co.

Makarand Patwardhan
(Partner)

C.P. No: - 9031 
FCS No: -11872

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14-08-2019
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Annexure “C”

Particulars of Employees remuneration and other details in terms of Section 134(3)(q) read with Section 197(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014:

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for 

Executive Director
   *   Shri H R Kilachand Nil
  **  Shri D J Shah Nil
Non Executive Director
 *** Shri P N Dubey 0.16:1
       Shri M A Kuvadia 1.15:1
**** Shri  A S Ruia 1.06:1

Executive Director
  *   Shri H R Kilachand NIL
 **   Shri D J Shah Nil
Non Executive Director
***  Shri P N Dubey Nil
       Shri M A Kuvadia Nil
**** Shri A S Ruia NA
Key Managerial Personnel

8.23%
Shri D J Shah, Company Secretary 15.34%

4. The Company has 261 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2019

5. Average percentile increase in salaries of Employees, other than managerial personnel, during the year under 
review was (12.22%), whereas average percentile increase in salaries of Managerial Personnel during the year 
under review was (4.92%).

*  Shri H R Kilachand had stopped drawing remuneration from the Company voluntarily, since March, 2014 in 
view of the heavy losses suffered by the Company for the last few years.

** Shri D J Shah ceased to be a Whole Time Director w.e.f. 30.4.2018

*** Shri P N Dubey ceased to be an Independent Director w.e.f. 30.4.2018

****  Shri A S Ruia appointed as a Director w.e.f.30.04.2018.

Explanation:

highest value and picking the middle one; 

(ii) if there is an even number of observations, the median shall be the average of the two middle values. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of Kesar Enterprises Limited

H R KILACHAND
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00294835
Date: 14.08.2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Scenario in India 
Sugar
India is the second largest producer of sugar in the world. The sugar industry is the largest agro-processing sector in 
India. It is dominated by the co-operative sector in terms of number of units. However, with private players going in 
for major expansions, the gap between the private and co-operative sector is expected to narrow down in the future in 
terms of installed capacity as well as production. The industry is highly regulated by the Central and State Governments 
by way of cane growing area, sugarcane pricing, import-export policy, government policy etc. Sugar cane is cultivated 
in around 5 million hectares in India. The major sugarcane producers are Uttar Pradesh, Maharashtra, Tamilnadu and 
Karnataka. Sugar cane is the only source of sugar production in India unlike many other countries, which produce sugar 
from sugar beat.
Company Structure & Development 
Sugar
The sugar factory is located at Baheri, Dist. Bareilly, Uttar Pradesh, and is a large producer of sugar in the country. 
The plant started with an initial crushing capacity of 800 tons of cane crushed per day (tcd), which had been gradually 

country. Through constant investment in Cane Research & Development, the Company has successfully developed 
high yielding and early maturing varieties of sugarcane.
Power
The Company has commissioned a 44mw Bagasse based Cogeneration Power Plant at Baheri. It is one of the most 

a state-of-the-art Process Control system with performance monitoring software. The Company exported majority of 

UPPCL wants to review the tariff and has proposed / recommended for a tariff much lower than the existing one. The 
Company along with others, in the industry, are strongly taking up the matter with UPERC and the State Government 
directly as well.
Spirits

which would enable the Distillery to become zero discharge compliant. As the Company did not have such capability, 
the Company had voluntarily taken a shut down for its Distillery operations since October 2015.  With a view to 
revive the operations due to a remunerative policy of the Central Government for ethanol, the Company has put-in 

Discharge (ZLD) norms of PCB, we will have to install an incineration boiler in due course, to maintain continuity of 
our distillery plant operations in the monsoon period.  We have started Distillery operations from 1st week of June 2019 

Opportunities & Threats 
Sugar
Untimely change in government policy and upward pricing in terms of Fair Remunerative Price (FRP) and State Advised 
Price (SAP) can prove a threat to the Company.
Power
The Company has set up a state of the art cogeneration plant operating at very high pressure of 115 kg/cm2. Therefore, 

87 kg/cm 2. This will therefore translate into producing more power from same bagasse. 
Spirits 

due to various reasons, in last few years – appears to be a big advantage.  
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Outlook 
Sugar
The sugar industry will be a major player in producing cost effective energy and fuel from its by-products bagasse and 
molasses. Bagasse can be processed for co-generation of power. Also, ethanol produced from molasses can be used as 
motor fuel by blending it with petrol.
During the Financial Year 2018-19, there has been a decrease in sugar prices from the levels prevailing. This has 

2019-20, there may be steady sugar prices. This may result into the Company generating better operational margins. 
The industry outlook is also positive.
Power
The season ahead should see proper utilization of the cogeneration plant capacity and therefore the exportable power 
will give rise to more revenues. 
Spirits 
As the Company has installed a Multiple Effect Evaporation (MEE) and Condensate Polishing Unit (CPU) for taking 
care of pollution norms to a certain extent, we expect good revenues by production / sale of spirit to various vendors 
next season onwards. Being attached to the sugar unit, we have the added advantage of operations by having in-house 

again as the present Government policy is in favour of the Industry.
Risks and Concerns
Sugar Division being agro based is vulnerable to various risks enumerated below:
Raw Material Risk:
Sugarcane is the principal raw material for manufacture of Sugar, Spirits and Power and its shortages could be on 
account of pest attacks, crop diseases, diversion of land by farmers. Shortage of the basic raw materials would severely 
impact the working of the divisions of the Company. To mitigate these risks, the Company has adopted sound agronomic 
practice and improvement in basic infrastructure facilities.
Price Risk:

as well as sugar, variance in production capacities of peers. Any change may affect the margins of the Company. 
Regulatory Risk:
The policies of the Central and State Governments in terms of Fair Remunerative Price (FRP) and State Advised Price 
(SAP) for sugarcane have an impact on the operations of the Company.
Internal Control System
The Company has an appropriate internal control system for its various functions with the ultimate objective of 

monitored periodically. The detail internal audit reports are discussed at length at various levels and thereafter the said 
reports are also placed before the Audit Committee for review and discussion.
Segment-wise Financial Performance

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations Front

Efforts are made to improve skills, knowledge and performance of employees by timely training, job satisfaction and 
enrichment. The Company has added to its fold, experienced manpower in line with future areas of growth.
Cautionary Statement

of applicable laws, and regulations and is futuristic in nature. All statements that address expectations or projections 

achievement could thus differ materially from those projected in any such forward looking statements. Investors are 

no responsibility.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance:

creditors, depositors and customers. The Company believes that its systems and actions must be endeavoured for 
enhancing corporate performance and maximizing shareholder value in the long term.

2. Board of Directors:

 The Composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity with the stipulation laid down in the Code of Corporate 
Governance prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

expertise, but also impart the desired level of independence to the Board.

 The Composition and Category of Directors is as follows:

Name of Director Category

Shri H R Kilachand (DIN:00294835) : Chairman & Managing Director

Shri A S Ruia (DIN:00296622) : Independent Director [w.e.f.30.04.2018]

Shri P N Dubey (DIN:02132564) : Independent Director [upto 30.04.2018]

Shri M A Kuvadia (DIN:07195042) : Independent Director

Ms. Bhumika Batra (DIN:03502004) : Independent Director [From 14.08.2018 to 22.07.2019]

Shri D J Shah (DIN:03095028) : Whole-Time Director [upto 30.04.2018]

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings held during 1.4.2018 to 31.3.2019, the last Annual General 
Meeting held on 14.08.2018 and the Number of other Directorships & Chairmanship/ Membership of Committees 
of each Director in various Companies & Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors are as under:

Name of the 
Director

No. of 
Shares 
Held 

by Non 
Executive 
Directors

Attendance Particulars No. of other Directorships and Committee 
Member / Chairmanship in other 

Companies

Out of 
6 Board 
Meetings

Out of 
5 Audit 

Committee 
Meetings

2 Nomination 
& 

Remuneration 
Committee 

Meeting

1 Independent 
Directors 
Meeting

Sitting Fees 
paid (Rs.)

Last 
AGM

Other 
Directorship 

#

Committee 
Members $

Chairmanships

Shri H R Kilachand 5,73,976 6 5 2 - - Yes 2 4 -

Shri P N Dubey 
upto 30.04.2018

1 - 1 - 40,000/- No 1 2 2

Shri A S Ruia

w.e.f. 30.04.2018 1000 6 5 1 1 2,60,000/- Yes

Shri M A Kuvadia - 6 5 2 1 2,80,000/- Yes 1 2 0

D J Shah upto 
30.04.2018

1 - - - - Yes - - -

Ms. Bhumika Batra - - - - - - NA 6 3 3

# Excludes Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 8 of Companies Act, 2013, trusts and alternate directorships 
as per Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

$ Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been considered as per Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
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Regulation 25 & 26 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Name of Director Listed Company Category

Shri H R Kilachand Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure Ltd. Executive Chairman

Shri A S Ruia Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure Ltd. Independent Director

Shri M A Kuvadia Aishwarya Telecnologies & Telecom Ltd. 
[formerly – Aishwarya Telecom Ltd.]

Independent Director

Retirement by Rotation of Director:

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, as there is no other Non-Independent Director except Shri H 
R Kilachand, though he has been appointed as a Director not liable to retire by rotation by the Company, Shri H R 
Kilachand, Chairman & Managing Director will retire by rotation at the 84th AGM and he being eligible, offers himself 

DIN 00294835

Birth Date 04.05.1960

Nationality Indian

B.Com. from University of Bombay; and C.B.M. & P.D.B.M. from U.S.A.

Experience
was entrusted with the duties of Administration & Co-ordination work of KEL 
and also to plan & supervise projects for modernisation and expansion of 

completion of the expansion & modernisation of Sugar Factory, Distillery, ENA 
& IMFL Plants, the Power Plant for Cogeneration and also a Second Storage 
Terminal at Kandla.

working as a Chairman & Managing Director of KEL.

Since the demerger of Storage Division of KEL into Kesar Terminals & 
Infrastructure Ltd. [KTIL] i.e. from 14.09.2010, he has worked as the Executive 
Chairman of KTIL for almost 2 terms of 3 years each i.e. till 29.04.2016. He 
has been appointed again w.e.f. 20.12.2017as Executive Chairman of KTIL. 
He has contributed a lot in the growth of KTIL. He could manage to get for 
KTIL a Composite Logistic Hub Project at Madhya Pradesh through its Special 
Purpose Vehicle Company viz. Kesar Multimodal Logistics Ltd. (KMLL). He is 
also a Non-Executive Chairman of KMLL.

Shareholding

Relationship with other Director Nil

List of other Directorship Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure Ltd.
Kesar Multimodal Logistics Ltd.
Kesar Corporation Pvt. Ltd.
Indian Commercial Co. Pvt. Ltd.
Seel Investment Private Ltd. (w.e.f. 21.02.2019)
Kilachand Devchand & Company Private Ltd.
Kilachand Devchand Commercial Private Ltd.
India Carat Pvt. Ltd. (upto 15.02.2019)

Relationship between the Directors inter-se: Nil

The details of Familiarization Programme imparted to Independent Directors is disclosed on the website of the Company 
viz. Kesarindia.com
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Board Meetings held and the dates thereof:

During the year, 6 Board Meetings were held 30.04.2018; 22.05.2018; 13.06.2018; 14.08.2018; 14.11.2018 & 
13.02.2019. The gap between any two consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company was not more 
than 120 days.

Board Committees

Company acts as the Secretary to the Committees. Each Committee has its purposes, goals and responsibilities. These 

function and executes its duties and responsibilities. The details of the Committees constituted by the Board are as 
under:

3. Audit Committee:

 As per Section 177 of the Act & Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Company has constituted an 
Audit Committee.

 (a) Terms of Reference

 2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company;

 3. Approval of payment to statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them;

submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

Report in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013;

  b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

  c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the Management;

  f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;

approval;

 6. Reviewing, with the Management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated 
in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the 
utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to 
take up steps in this matter;

 9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

 10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

control systems;
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suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the Board;

 16. Discussion with statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

 17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

 18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

and background, etc. of the candidate;

 20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

  (b) Composition

   The Audit Committee comprises of the following Directors. The Committee is chaired by an Independent 
Director.

   Shri A S Ruia – Independent Director–Chairman of the Committee

   Shri M A Kuvadia – Independent Director - Member of the Committee

   Shri H R Kilachand – Chairman & Managing Director - Member of the Committee

  (c) Meetings & Attendance

During the year, 5 meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 22.05.2018; 13.06.2018; 14.08.2018; 
14.11.2018 & 13.02.2019 with the time gap between 2 meetings of less than 120 days. The attendance 

Auditors or their representatives used to remain present as Invitee in such Meetings. The Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

of various functions of the Company. The reports of the Internal Audit Department are placed before 
the Audit Committee along with the comments of the Management on the action taken to remedy 

In addition the Company has appointed M/s. Ashok Jayesh & Associates, Chartered Accountants as 
Independent Internal Auditor, [External].

Representatives of the Statutory Auditors M/s Haribhakti & Co., Chartered Accountants and Independent 
Internal Auditor M/s Ashok Jayesh & Associates, Chartered Accountants are invited for the meeting of 
the Audit Committee.

4. Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

The Committee comprises of the following Directors. The Committee is chaired by an Independent Director. A 
meeting of the Committee was held on 30.04.2018 & 14.08.2018

 Shri A S Ruia  – Independent Director–Chairman of the Committee

 Shri M A Kuvadia – Independent Director - Member of the Committee

 Shri H R Kilachand – Chairman & Managing Director - Member of the Committee

As per Regulation 19(1)(a) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee [NRC] is 

in the process of inducting one more Non-Executive Director.

 The Key Objectives of the Committee is:

Senior Management.
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recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees.

further evaluation of the Board.

Senior Management.

and create competitive advantage.

The brief terms of reference of this Committee includes consideration, review and approval of remuneration of 
Executive Director / Chairman and sitting fees payable to Non-Executive Directors with regard to performance 
standards and existing industry practices.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

 a) Remuneration to Executive Chairman / Director / Whole-time Director / Managing Director, KMP and 
Senior Management Personnel:

  The Remuneration/ Compensation / Commission / Incentive etc. to be paid to Executive Chairman / Director / 
Whole-time Director / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel etc. shall be governed as 
per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time 
being in force.

 b) Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

  The Non-Executive / Independent Director may receive compensation / commission as per the provisions 
of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force.

  Remuneration of Executive and Non-Executive Directors:

  Shri H R Kilachand was drawing his remuneration only from KTIL earlier and had stopped drawing from the 
Company (KEL) voluntarily from March 2014, in view of the heavy losses suffered by the Company for the 
last few years.

Name Sitting Fees (Rs.)

Shri P N Dubey 40,000/-

Shri A S Ruia 2,60,000

Shri M A Kuvadia 2,80,000

5. Share Transfer Committee

delegated to Shri H R Kilachand and Shri D J Shah who met on 13.06.2018; 17.07.2018; 27.09.2018; 5.11.2018; 
05.12.2018; 05.02.2019; 19.03.2019 & 29.03.2019 to consider the related matters. There was no pending share 
transfers as on March 31, 2019.

6. Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

Stakeholders Relationship Committee [SRC]. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The 
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Committee consists of the following Directors:

Shri M A Kuvadia  – Independent Director–Chairman of the Committee

Shri A S Ruia  – Independent Director - Member of the Committee

Shri H R Kilachand   – Chairman & Managing Director - Member of the Committee

The key responsibilities of the Committee are to look in to:

(ii) Non-receipt of declared dividends, balance sheets of the Company; and

(iii) Carrying out any other function as prescribed under in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Committee has periodic interaction with the representatives of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the 
Company.

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Company had received few complaints / grievances from its 
Shareholders, which were replied satisfactorily by the Company.

7. Risk Management Committee [RMC]:

Management Committee consists of the following:

Shri M A Kuvadia  – Independent Director–Chairman of the Committee

Shri H R Kilachand  – Chairman & Managing Director - Member of the Committee

8. General Body Meetings:

 i. Location and time where the last Annual General Meetings were held:

AGM Financial Year ended Date Location Time

83rd 31.03.2018 14.08.2018 M C Ghia Hall 3:30 p.m

82nd 31.03.2017 25.07.2017 M C Ghia Hall 3:30 p.m

81st 31.12.2016 (15 Months) 11.08.2016 M C Ghia Hall 11:00 a.m

 ii. The following Special Resolutions were passed in the Annual General Meeting:

Date of AGM Particulars of Special Resolution passed thereat

14.08.2018
A S Ruia as the Independent Director for the 2nd term of 5 years and also that his age is 
75 years.

the Whole-Time Director without any remuneration for a period from 27.01.2018 to 
30.04.2018.

25.07.2017 Resolution under Section 20 of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to charging actual cost for 
sending documents to shareholders by speed post, courier or registered post.

11.08.2016 Resolution under Section 196, 197 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions 

Kilachand for a period of 3 years w.e.f 14.8.2016.

iii. No Resolutions was passed during the Financial Year 2018-2019 through Postal Ballot.
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9. Disclosures:

Companies Act and were in the ordinary course of business and on an arms length basis. There was no 
Material Related Party transaction, i.e. transactions exceeding 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as 

parties as per Accounting Standard 18 and the transactions entered into with them.

 b. There has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to capital markets 
during the last three years, except 
2018  pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) on June 13, 2018 as against the due date of May 30, 2018 and the Company 

 c. The Company has laid down procedures to inform Board members about risk assessment and minimization. 

 d.  Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

  In staying true to our values of Strength, Performance and Passion, the Company is committed to the high 
standards of Corporate Governance and Stakeholder responsibility. The Company has a Whistle Blower 
Policy to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any.

  The details of Whistle Blower Policy are available on the website of the Company, www.kesarindia.com/
investors/corporate governance/policies

 Tel: 022-22042396

certifying inter alia that the Financial Statement do not contain any untrue statement and these statements 

Regulations 2015 was placed before the Board of Directors of the Company and annexed to this report.

 f.  Management Discussion & Analysis report has been included as a part of the Annual Report.

2015.

the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated there under is annexed to this Report.

10. Means of communication:

format of the stock exchange and forthwith fax and upload / send copies of the results to the Bombay Stock Exchange 
and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. respectively where the shares of the Company are listed.

newspapers within 48 hours of the conclusion of the meeting of the Board in which they are approved.

com and www.nseindia.com and also on the website of the Company, viz. www.kesarindia.com
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11. General Shareholders information:

a : Kesar Enterprises Ltd. 
Oriental House, 7, Jamshedji Tata Road, 
Churchgate, Mumbai-400020.

b Plant Locations : Sugar Factory, Power Plant, Spirits & Bottling at Baheri, 
Dist. Bareilly, U. P.

c Annual General Meeting

Date : 20.09.2019. Friday

Time : 3:30 pm.

d Venue : M C Ghia Hall, Bhogilal Hargovindas Building, 4th Floor, 
18/20, Kaikhushru Dubash Marg, Mumbai – 400 001

e Financial Year : 2018-19

f Next Financial Year ending : 31st March, 2020

g Next Annual General Meeting By 30th September, 2020

Financial Reporting for the year 2019-20

By 14th August, 2019

By 14th November, 2019

By 14th February, 2020

By 30th May, 2020

h Date of Book Closure : From 13.09.2019 - Friday

To 20.09.2019 - Friday

(Both days inclusive)

i Listing on Stock Exchange : Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., 

j Stock Exchange Code Number : National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., 

k Demat ISIN numbers in NSDL & CDSL : The Company has paid annual listing fees due to BSE and 
NSE for the year 2018-19.

BSE Scrip Code : 507180

NSE Symbol : KESARENT

INE133B01019

l Address for correspondence by the Shareholders of the Company:

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:
M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd.
C 101, 247 Park, L BS Marg,
Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai - 400 083.
Tel.No.: +91 22 28515606/ 28515644
Fax: +91 22 28512885
Email:
Website : www.sharexindia.com

Kesar Enterprises Ltd.
Oriental House, 7, Jamshedji Tata Road,
Churchgate, 
Mumbai-400020.

Tel No.: +91 22 22042396 / 22851737

Email:
Website : www.kesarindia.com

Share Transfer System:

The shares sent for transfer are registered and returned within the time limits. Pursuant to the SEBI (LODR) Regulation 

also been received from the Company Secretary in Practice for timely dematerialization of the shares of the Company 
and for conducting of Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit of the Company.
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Stock Market Data:

Month BSE NSE

High Low High Low

April 2018 51.90 38.15 51.00 40.00

May 2018 42.40 28.55 43.00 30.20

June 2018 38.00 27.25 39.55 29.20

July 2018 36.50 25.00 34.50 26.00

August 2018 39.90 26.30 37.50 29.45

September 2018 47.20 28.00 49.70 29.40

October 2018 36.50 28.50 36.00 26.75

November 2018 32.45 27.20 32.70 26.65

December 2018 30.00 25.80 30.20 26.20

January 2019 30.80 27.00 30.80 26.20

February 2019 33.90 25.95 34.30 25.75

March 2019 33.85 26.10 33.40 26.50

Performance of the share price of the Company in comparison to the BSE Sensex:

Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2019:

Shareholding in Nominal Value of Rs. Shareholders Share Amount

Holders % of Holders In Rs. % to Total

Upto - 5,000 4485 88.097         5542550 5.499

5,001 -10,000 315 6.187         2467130 2.448

10,001 - 20,000 162           3.182         2419130 2.400

20,001 - 30,000 46 0.904         1149700 1.141

30,001 - 40,000 17 0.334          603380 0.599

40,001 - 50,000 8 0.157          368760 0.366

50,001 - 1,00,000 31 0.609         2327570 2.309

1,00,001 - and above 27 0.530        85918600 85.239

Total 5091 100.00 100796820 100.00

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
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Categories of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2019:

As on 31.03.2019, about 97.37% of the total shareholding in the Company representing 98,14,934 shares stood 
converted into dematerialized form.

Sr. Category No. of Shares 
Held

No. of Shares in 
Demat Form

% of 
Shareholding

A. PROMOTERS HOLDING

1 Promoters: - Indian Promoters 58,06,037 58,06,037 57.60

- Foreign Promoters - - -

2 Persons acting in concert 11,72,605 11,49,734 11.63

Sub Total: 69,78,642 69,55,771 69.23

B. NON-PROMOTERS HOLDING

1. INSTITUTIONAL

a. Mutual Funds & UTI 1,200 0 0.01

b. Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance 
Companies

5,14,694 5,13,999 5.10

c. Flls - - -

C. OTHERS:

a. Private Corporate Bodies 6,53,131 6,51,441 6.48

b. Indian Public 18,99,026 16,60,734 18.84

18,195 18,195 0.18

d. Clearing Members 14,794 14,794 0.15

Sub Total: 31,01,040 28,59,163 30.77

GRAND TOTAL: 1,00,79,682 98,14,934 100.00

Guidance to Shareholders:

Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd., the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company located at the addresses 
mentioned in clause 11 above.

inform the Company to stop transfer of the said shares.

deed. SEBI vide its circular dated 27.4.2007 has made it mandatory for transactions involving transfer of shares in 

such transfer of shares. SEBI vide its circular dated 7.1.2010 has made it mandatory to furnish a copy of PAN in 
the following cases:-

 a) Deletion of name of the deceased shareholder(s), where the shares are held in the name of two or more 
shareholders.

 b)  Transmission of shares to the legal heir(s), where deceased shareholder was the sole holder of shares.

 c) Transposition of shares – when there is a change in the order of names in which physical shares are held 
jointly in the names of two or more Shareholders.

new specimen signature duly attested by a bank manager.
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6. Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides facility for making nominations by shareholders in respect of their 
holding of shares. Such nomination greatly facilitates transmission of shares from the deceased shareholder to his / 

it would therefore be in the best interest of shareholders holding shares in physical form registered as a sole holder 

the bank for incorporating the same in the dividend warrants. This would avoid wrong credits being obtained by 
unauthorized persons.

respect of any change of address, nomination facility and furnishing bank account number etc.

125 of the Companies Act, 2013 [erstwhile Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956] are as under.:

Date of declaration For the Year Rate of Dividend Due date of transfer to 
IEPF

17.11.2011 2010-2011 14.01.2019

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members of
Kesar Enterprises Limited.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Kesar Enterprises Limited, for the year 
ended on March 31, 2019, as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraph 

Exchanges in India.

We have conducted our examination on the basis of the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company 
and furnished to us for the purpose of the review and the information and explanations given to us by the Company 
during the course of such review.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 

of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 
Company has in all material respect complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above 
mentioned Listing Agreement.

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ragini Chokshi & Co.
Makarand Patwardhan

(Partner)
C.P. No: - 9031
FCS No: -11872

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14-08-2019
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
KESAR ENTERPRISES LIMITED
ORIENTAL HOUSE,7 JAMSHEDJI TATA ROAD,
CHURCHGATE MUMBAI MH 400020 IN

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of KESAR 

read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the 

as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
other Statutory Authority.

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 
Company

1 MAHESH AMBALAL KUVADIA 07195042 11/07/2016

2 HARSH RAJNIKANT KILACHAND 00294835 14/08/2010

3 ANILKUMAR SUSHILKUMAR RUIA 00296622 30/04/2018

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 For Ragini Chokshi & Co.
Makarand Patwardhan

(Partner)
C.P. No :- 9031

ACS No :- 11872
Date: 14/08/2019
Place: Mumbai
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DECLARATION

for the Financial Year 2018-19.

 H R Kilachand
 Chairman & Managing Director
Mumbai DIN: 00294835
14th August, 2019

CERTIFICATION
Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Board of Directors
Kesar Enterprises Limited

hereby certify that:

1. We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief :

 (i)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year 

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee:

disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements; and

system over Financial Reporting.

  Rohit Balu H R Kilachand

   Din: 00294835
Mumbai,
14th August, 2019



Annual Report 2018-2019

36

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Kesar Enterprises Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matter Our Response

`

Other Information
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Sumant Sakhardande
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s 

March 31, 2019]

 

` in Lakhs

Land/ Building Total 
number of 

cases

Leasehold/ 
Freehold

Gross Block as on 
March 31, 2019

Net Block as on 
March 31, 2019

Remarks
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Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount
(` in lakhs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Quota
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` in Lakhs

Particulars Amount of default as at March 
31, 2019 (Less than 12 months) 

(Excluding Interest) 

Amount of default as at March 
31, 2019 (more than 12 

months) (Excluding Interest)

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Sumant Sakhardande
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s 

March 31, 2019]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of 
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Opinion

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Sumant Sakhardande
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BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019     

(` in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS  Note 

No.
 As at  

31st March, 2019 
 As at  

31st March, 2018 
I ASSETS

1 Non - Current Assets
 46,726.04 

 21.11 
 5.29 

 1,330.39 
 21.72 

 164.02 
 16.94 

 288.00 
2 Current Assets

 8,039.89 

 -   
 2,894.43 

 181.27 
 151.17 

 27.18 
 142.91 

Total  65,181.36  60,010.36 
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Equity
 1,007.97 
 9,337.10 

2 Liabilities
I Non - Current Liabilities

 782.35 
 691.42 

 62.51 
II Current Liabilities

 8,957.68 

 198.06 
  10,851.40 

 26,664.85 
 1,318.10 

 120.99 
 17.93 

Total  65,181.36  60,010.36 

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H R KILACHAND  A S RUIA

Sumant Sakhardande ROHIT BALU D J SHAH
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2019 

(` In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS  Note No.  For the year ended on 

31st March, 2019 
 For the year ended on 

31st March, 2018 
I. Revenue from Operations  31,370.74 
II. Other Income  149.15 
III. Total Income (I + II)  40,503.36  31,519.89 
IV. EXPENSES

 31,696.00 
 61.18 

 (5,773.59)

 2,154.51 
 4,316.66 
 1,819.14 
 1,917.66 

Total Expenses  44,525.74  36,191.56 
V Loss before Exceptional Items & Tax (III- IV)  (4,671.67)
VI Exceptional Items  -   
VII Net Loss Before Tax (V-VI)  (4,671.67)
VIII Tax Expense:

 -   
 -   

IX Loss for the Year (VII-VIII)  (4,022.38)  (4,671.67)
X Other Comprehensive Income

 (19.91)
 (668.13)

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (IX+X)  (4,737.16)  (5,359.71)

`  (46.35)
`  (46.35)

` `

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H R KILACHAND  A S RUIA

Sumant Sakhardande ROHIT BALU D J SHAH
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2019             

(` In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS  For the Year ended 

31st March, 2019 
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NET LOSS BEFORE TAX

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES  2,300.15  1,480.94 
Movements in working Capital

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS  3,078.84  1,782.17 

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  3,076.83  1,782.57 
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

NET CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (1,624.37)  (136.64)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (1,468.92)  (1,535.13)
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
(A+B+C)

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD  164.81  181.27 
COMPONENT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  164.81  181.27 
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For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H R KILACHAND  A S RUIA

Sumant Sakhardande ROHIT BALU D J SHAH
 

 

  

` in Lakhs



Annual Report 2018-2019

48

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 (a)  Statement of Compliance with Ind - AS

 (b)  Basis of Measurement

 (d) 

 (e)  Use of Estimates

  Key accounting estimates

  i) Income taxes:
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 (f) Revenue Recognition

 (g)  Property Plant and Equipment
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 (h)  Depreciation

Description of Asset Useful Life

 (i)  Capital Work-in-Progress

 (j)  Borrowing Costs:

 (k)  Leases:

   Operating Lease 

   As a lessee
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As a Lessor

 (l)  Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

 (m)  Financial Instruments

Part I - Financial Assets

i)  Initial recognition and measurement

ii)  Subsequent measurement

 - Financial Asset at amortised cost:

 - Financial Asset at FVTOCI (Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income)
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Equity investments

iii)  De-recognition
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Part II - Financial Liabilities

i)  Initial recognition and measurement

ii)  Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings
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Financial guarantee contracts

iii)  De-recognition

(n)  Inventories

(o)  Foreign Currency Transactions

(p)  Intangible assets - Research & Development Expenditure



55

(q)  Earnings per Share

(r)  Provisions

(s)  Tax Expense

- Current tax

- Deferred tax

- Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

(t)  Segment Reporting
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(v)  Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(w) Cash and cash equivalents

(x)  Government grants and subsidies



57

(y)  Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ind AS 116 Leases:
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019  

(` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Equity 
Share 

Capital

Other Equity Total 
Equity

Reserves and Surplus Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Total 
Other 
EquityCapital 

Reserve
Securities 
Premium 

Reserve

Revaluation 
Reserves

Storage  
and  

Disposal  
Reserves:

General  
Reserve

Retained 
Earning

As at April 1, 2017  1,007.97  67.90  801.05  28,080.87  66.92  3,330.72  (19,809.96)  2,156.95  14,694.45  15,702.42 

As at March 31, 2018  1,007.97  67.90  801.05  27,186.24  69.28  4,225.35  (24,481.63)  1,468.91  9,337.10  10,345.07 

As at March 31, 2019  1,007.97  67.90  801.05  26,174.92  73.20  5,236.67  (28,504.01)  754.13  4,603.86  5,611.83 

          

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sumant Sakhardande H R KILACHAND  A S RUIA

ROHIT BALU D J SHAH
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 
31ST MARCH, 2019  

3. INVESTMENTS ` in Lakhs
PARTICULARS  As at  

31st March, 2019 
 As at  

31st March, 2018 
Other Investments 
(a) In fully paid Equity Shares through FVTPL (Unquoted)

` `

` `

` `

` `

` `

` `

Total (a)

(b)  In fully paid Equity Shares Through FVTOCI (Quoted)
`  

`

(c) Investment in Government Security (At amortised Cost)

Total (b+c)

Total (a+b+c)

Total

4. LOANS

Total  25.40  21.72 

5. OTHERS

Total  46.90  164.02 
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6. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) ` in Lakhs
PARTICULARS  As at  

31st March, 2019 
 As at  

31st March, 2018 

Total  16.94  16.94 

7. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Total  261.61  288.00 

8. INVENTORIES
(a) Raw Materials and components 

 8.69  8.69 
(b) Work-in-progress 

 512.26  512.77 
(c) Finished goods 

 9,351.06  6,142.25 
(d) By - Products 

 1,180.71  1,044.51 
(e) Stores and spares

Total  11,446.10  8,039.89 

9. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Total  257.28  -   

 253.06  -   

10. TRADE RECEIVABLES

 5,889.40  3,281.69 

Total  5,449.99  2,894.43 
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11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ` in Lakhs
PARTICULARS  As at  

31st March, 2019 
 As at  

31st March, 2018 

Total  164.81  181.27 

12. BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Total  165.25  151.17 

13. LOANS

Total  5.19  27.18 

14. OTHER - CURRENT ASSETS

Total  177.66  142.91 

15. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
PARTICULARS  As at 31st March, 2019  As at 31st March, 2018 

 Number  Amount  Number  Amount 
Authorised

`
`

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
`
Total  1,00,79,682  1,007.97  1,00,79,682  1,007.97 

(a) Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity Shares Outstanding  Number  Amount  Number  Amount 

 1,00,79,682  1,007.97  1,00,79,682  1,007.97 

(b) Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares
`

(c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company
Equity Shareholder 
Name of Shareholder  No. of  

Shares held 
% of  

Holding 
 No. of  

Shares held 
 % of  

Holding 



63

16. OTHER EQUITY ` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS
 As at  

31st March, 2019 
 As at  

31st March, 2018 

(a) Capital Reserves

(b) Securities Premium

Opening Balance

Closing Balance  801.05  801.05 

(c) Revaluation Reserves

Opening Balance

Closing Balance  26,174.92  27,186.24 

(d)

(i) Storage  Reserves for  Alcohol:

 Opening Balance

 Closing Balance  5.26  5.26 

(ii) Storage  Reserves for  Molasses:

 Opening Balance

 Closing Balance  62.35  58.43 

 Opening Balance

 Closing Balance  5.59  5.59 

(e) General  Reserve

Opening Balance

Closing Balance  5,236.67  4,225.35 

(f) Retained Earning

Opening Balance

Closing Balance  (28,504.01)  (24,481.63)

(g) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Opening Balance

Closing Balance  754.13  1,468.91 

Total  4,603.86  9,337.10 
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` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS
 As at  

31st March, 2019 
 As at  

31st March, 2018 
17. BORROWINGS

(a) Secured Borrowings
Term Loans from Banks
(1) Sugar Development Fund  (Modernisation Loan)                                                                 

(As appearing in the books)  
Security: 

Terms of Repayments:
`

 
Tranche II: `

(2) Sugar Development Fund (Co-Gen Term Loan)  
(As appearing in the books) 
Security:

Terms of Repayments: 

`
 

Tranche II: 
Terms of Repayments:

`

Total Secured Borrowings  612.35 
`

` `
`

(b) Unsecured Borrowings

Total Unsecured Borrowings  133.84  170.00 
Total (a+b)  406.17  782.35 

Details of Default in repayment of principal Instalment & Interest ` in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As on March 31, 2019

Banks Others Total

 Total  -    27.33  27.33 
Details of Default in repayment of principal Instalment & Interest ` in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As on March 31, 2018

Banks Others Total

 Total  1,197.61  3,617.01  4,814.62 
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18.  PROVISIONS ` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS  As at  
31st March, 2019 

 As at  
31st March, 2018 

Total  739.84  691.42 

19. OTHER  NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Total  51.30  62.51 

20. BORROWINGS

(a) Secured Loans from Banks

 Security:

(b) Unsecured loans from Banks 

Total  8,957.68  8,957.68 

Details of Default in repayment of Principal Instalment & Interest

PARTICULARS  As on  
March 31, 2019 

 As on  
March 31, 2018 

Banks Banks

 Total  3,694.70  3,410.02 

21 TRADE PAYABLES

Total  17,739.46  11,049.46 
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` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS  As on  
March 31, 2019 

 As on  
March 31, 2018 

22. OTHERS

(a) Current maturities of Long Term Debts

 
 

 

 

Total  29,999.06  26,664.85 
   
(1)  Allahabad Bank ( Cogen Term Loan)   

 Primary Security:

 Personal Guarantee:

 Terms of Repayments: ` `

(2)  UCO Bank (Cogen Term Loan)   

 Primary Security:

 Personal Guarantee:

 Terms of Repayments: ` `

(3)  Allahabad Bank  (Cash Credit)   

 Security:

 Sugar Division:  

 Spirit Division:

 Seed Division: 
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  Details of Default in repayment of Principal Instalment & Interest   ` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS As on March 31, 2019

Banks Others Total

Total  15,168.93  4,212.38  19,381.31 

  Details of Default in repayment of Principal Instalment & Interest    

 PARTICULARS As on March 31, 2018

Banks Others Total

Total  14,526.30  -    14,526.30 

23. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES ` in Lakhs

 PARTICULARS  As at  
31st March, 2019 

 As at  
1st March, 2018 

Total  1,532.38  1,318.10 

24.  PROVISIONS
 PARTICULARS  As at  

31st March, 2019 
 As at  

31st March, 2018 

Total  127.72  120.99 

25.  CURRENT TAX LIABILITY  (NET)
 

` ` 

Total  15.92  17.93 
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26.  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS ` in Lakhs
PARTICULARS  For the year ended 

on 31st March, 2019 
 For the year ended 

on 31st March, 2018 
(A) Sale of Products
 Manufactured Goods

     Total (a)  39,792.79  30,857.72 
(B) Other Operating Revenue

     Total (b)  518.41  513.02 
         Total (a+b)  40,311.20  31,370.74 

27.  OTHER INCOME

Total  192.16  149.15 

28. COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED 
(i) Raw Materials Consumed

(a) Sugar Cane

 35,289.53  30,673.77 
(b) Molasses & Spirits

 -    14.43 
(c) Bagasse

(ii) Packing Material Consumed

Total  36,215.86  31,696.00 
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(` in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS  For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018 

 For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018 

29. EXCISE DUTY ON SALES

Total  -    61.18 

30. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK IN TRADE AND WORK IN PROGRESS       

(a) Opening Stock

 Total (a)  7,699.54  1,925.95 

(b) Closing Stock

Total (b)  11,044.01  7,699.54 

   Total (a-b)  (3,344.47)  (5,773.59)

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Total  2,323.53  2,154.51 

32. FINANCE COSTS

Total  4,478.19  4,316.66 
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` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS  For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018 

 For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018 

33. OTHER EXPENSES

Total  2,939.18  1,917.66 
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34.  Contingent Liabilities         

`
` 

`
`

` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS As at  
31st March, 2019

As at  
31st March, 2018

Total 7,012.11 9,269.19

35.  Capital and other commitments         

` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS As at  
31st March, 2019

As at  
31st March, 2018

` `

` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS As at  
31st March, 2019 

As at  
31st March, 2018

day
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` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018

(i) Gratuity (Funded)

 

` in Lakhs

 For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018

(a)

(759.91) (712.15)

(b)

(c)

788.25 764.89



73

` in Lakhs

 For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018

26.33 52.75

41.37 19.90

The Reconciliation of Balance Sheet in the statement are as follows:

759.91 712.15

54.91 43.17
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(h)
` in Lakhs

 Current Period Previous Period

(i) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted average):
PARTICULARS

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018

(j) Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:
` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS
 For the year  

ended on 31st 
March, 2019

For the year 
ended on 

31st March, 
2018

For the year 
ended on 

31st March, 
2017

For the Period of 
Fifteen Months 
ended on 31st 

March, 2016

For the Period of 
Eighteen Months 

ended on 31st 
December, 2014

(k) Experience Adjustment:
` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS
For the year 

ended on 
31st March, 

2019

For the year 
ended on 

31st March, 
2018

For the year 
ended on 

31st March, 
2017

For the Period of 
Fifteen Months 
ended on 31st 

March, 2016

For the Period of 
Eighteen Months 

ended on 31st 
December, 2014

` in Lakhs
PARTICULARS For the year ended 

on 31st March, 2019
For the year ended 

on 31st March, 2018
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` `

  Gratuity

` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS For the year ended on 
31st March, 2019 

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018

 

` ` 
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` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Sugar Power Spirits Total

(a) Revenue from Operations

38,980.70 14,107.75 0.00 53,088.45

59.13 13.05 8.06 80.2

6,110.88 6,666.3 - 12,777.25

111.92

Total Revenue 40,503.36

(b) Segmental Results

(4,298.21) 5,716.56 (494.20) 924.15

4,478.19

468.34

(4,022.38

(4,022.38)
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` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Sugar Power Spirits Total

(714.78)

Income 
(4,737.16)

(c) Segmental Assets and Liabilities

26,643.17 25,878.82 8,893.25 61,415.24

   3,766.12

   

   Total Assets    65,181.36

   

36,377.60 19,961.17 985.51 57,324.28

   5,611.83

   

  2,245.25

   

   Total Liabilities    65,181.36

   

(d) Capital Expenditure and Depreciation

(i)  Capital Expenditure including Capital 
Work in Progress

264.03 - 1,415.86 1,679.89

   3.05

   

  Total    1,682.94

   

(ii)  Depreciation/ Amortization 696.71 906.75 227.75 1,831.22

   82.23

   

  Total Depreciation/ Amortization    1913.45

 
 other than Depreciation/  
 Amortization

-
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` in Lakhs

Nature of Transaction Kesar 
Terminals & 

Infrastructure 
Ltd

Kilachand 
Devchand 
& Co. Pvt. 

Ltd.

Seel 
Investment 

Pvt. Ltd

Kesar 
Corporation 

Pvt. Ltd.

Kesar 
Multimodal 

Logistics Ltd

Others

4.15 10.93 0.12
  

 

3.17

10.40

 

- -
 

Advance given -
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` in Lakhs

Nature of Transaction Kesar 
Terminals & 

Infrastructure 
Ltd

Kilachand 
Devchand 
& Co. Pvt. 

Ltd.

Seel 
Investment 

Pvt. Ltd

Kesar 
Corporation 

Pvt. Ltd.

Kesar 
Multimodal 

Logistics Ltd

Others

Advance 
 

 17.38

  

5.80

 

251.67

655.20

 

  102.34 31.50

   

Note: ` in Lakhs

Name of the Directors For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018

Total 5.80 4.40

Risk Management Exposure arising from Measurement Management
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Risk Management Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit Risk

Trade receivables

(a)  Ageing (` in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018

Total 5,889.40 3,281.69

(b)  Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables  (` in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018

Balance at the end of the year 439.41 387.26

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Equity price risk

(` in Lakhs)

Equity Price sensitivity

This Year Previous Year
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Interest rate sensitivity

` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS

This Year Previous Year

` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Less than 1 
year

1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Year ended March 31, 2019

Year ended March 31, 2018

Capital Management

` in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018
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` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Amortised 
cost

FVTOCI FVTPL Amortised 
cost

FVTOCI FVTPL

6,036.49 655.20 257.28 3,584.49 1,328.60

58,686.05 48,834.95

43.  Fair Value Hierarchy

` in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Level 1

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018
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` 

` 

`  
`

 (` in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018

` 

`

`

`

`
` `

 

 

INCOME TAX
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For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H R KILACHAND ANIL RUIA

Sumant Sakhardande
ROHIT BALU D J SHAH
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STATEMENT SHOWING PRODUCTION AND YIELD IN SUGAR

SEASON DURATION 
DAYS

CANE CRUSHED 
M. TONS

SUGAR PRODUCED 
M. TONS

RECOVERY % 
OF CANE 
CRUSHED

STATEMENT SHOWING PRODUCTION AND YIELD IN DISTILLERY
Year Production 

(Litres)
Yield per 

Quintal of Molasses (Litres)
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Form No. MGT 11
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84TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON SEPTEMBER 20, 2019

84th Annual General Meeting
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Sr. Resolutions For Against

NOTE:
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(To be presented at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

I hereby record my presence at the 84th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, September 20, 
2019 at 3:30 p.m. at M C Ghia Hall, Bhogilal Hargovindas Building, 4th Floor, 18/20, Kaikhushru Dubash Marg, Mumbai 
400001. 
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Note:
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